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Federal M ne Safety and Heal th Revi ew Conm ssi on
O fice of Adm nistrative Law Judges

SECRETARY OF LABCR
M NE SAFETY AND HEALTH
ADM NI STRATI VE ( MSHA)

CIVIL PENALTY PROCEEDI NG

DOCKET NO WEST 80-332-M

PETI TI ONER A/ O No. 45-02140-05004- A
V.
FRANK L. M LES, DOCKET NO. WEST 80-333-M
RESPONDENT A/ O No. 45-02140- 05005- A
BEN LEI LER, Ml es Sand & G avel Conpany
RESPONDENT Upper Dickey Pit
Silverdal e, Kitsap County,
Washi ngt on
DEC!I SI ON
APPEARANCES:
Edward R Fitch Esq.
Ofice of the Solicitor
United States Departnent of Labor
4015 W son Boul evard
Arlington, Virginia 22203,
for the Petitioner
M. Frank L. Mles, pro se
P.O Box 130
Aubur n, Washi ngton 98002
M. Ben Leiler, pro se
Ml es Sand & G avel Conpany
P.O Box 130
Aubur n, Washi ngton 98002,
for the Respondent
Bef or e: Judge Jon D. Boltz

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The above two cases, which were consolidated for hearing,
i nvol ve all eged violations of section 110(c) of the Federal M ne

Safety and Health Act of 1977.

( FOOTNOTE. 1)
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The president of Mles and Sand and G avel Conpany and the pl an
superintendent are alleged to have "know ngly authorized,
ordered, or carried out" the alleged violation of 30 CF.R 0O
56.11-1 cited in Wthdrawal O der No. 351863, issued May 1, 1979.
The cited regulation requires that a safe neans of access shall
be provided and maintained to all working places. The wi thdrawal
order alleged that an enpl oyee was observed wal ki ng the reject
conveyor belt with a grease gun in his hand. It further alleged
tha the reject conveyor is 300 feet |ong and approximately 30
feet above the ground at its highest point. Both respondents
filed witten statenents denying the allegations of the
petitioner.

FI NDI NGS OF FACT:

1. On May 1, 1979, Mles Sand & G avel Conpany was a
corporation and its president was Frank L. Mles, respondent, and
t he plant superintendent was Ben Leiler, respondent. (Exhibits 4
and 5).

2. The mine where the alleged violation took place is a
surface sand and gravel mne with seven enpl oyees. (Exhibit 5).

3. Mles Sand & Gravel Company has nore than one pl ant
| ocation and is a nedium sized sand and gravel operation |ocated
in the State of Washington. (Tr. 42).

4. Mles Sand & Gravel Conpany paid a penalty assessnent of
$150.00 for the violation of 30 CF.R [56.11-1 alleged in
Wt hdrawal Order 351863, issued May 1, 1979. (Exhibit 8).

5. The corporate operator has a history of seventeen paid
vi ol ati ons and the respondents have no previous violations
(Exhibit 8, Tr. 47).

6. The violation alleged in Wthdrawal O der No. 351863 was
abated pronptly and in good faith by the corporate operator.
(Tr. 145, Exhibit 1).

7. At the tine of the inspection on May 1, 1979, the NMSHA
i nspect or observed and phot ographed an enpl oyee of the corporate
operator wal king up the reject conveyor toward the head pull ey
with a grease gun in his hand. (Tr. 25, Exhibit 7).

8. The conveyor is approximtely 300 feet |ong and 30 to 40
feet above the surface of the ground. The conveyor belt itself
is approximately 30 inches wide. (Tr. 71).

9. On the day of the inspection, May 1, 1979, the neans of
access provided to an enployee in order to grease the head pull ey
of the conveyor belt was to either wal k up the conveyor belt or
to clinb up the reject rock material which falls off the end of
the conveyor and fornms a pile on the ground. (Tr. 37).



~1256

10. The accumnul ation of rock material fromthe end of the
conveyor builds in height until it is sufficiently high enough to
all ow an enpl oyee to wal k up the refuse pile and grease the head
pull ey at the end of the conveyor belt. (Tr. 37).

11. In order to abate the withdrawal order for the alleged
failure to provide a safe nmeans of access to a working place, the
enpl oyees of the corporate operator |owered the el evated grease
fittings to a safe lubricating location. (Exhibit 2).

12. On February 5, 1979, at another gravel pit owned by the
corporate operator and located in the State of Wshington, an
enpl oyee was injured, after greasing the head pulley on the
el evated end of a conveyor, when his foot slipped on the conveyor
belt and he fell approximately 15 feet into a sand pile. The
conveyor was protected with a wal kway and railing. (Exhibit 6).

| SSUES:

1. On May 1, 1979, did the corporate operator fail to
provide and maintain a safe neans of access to the working area,
thus violating 30 C.F.R [56.11-1 as alleged in the w thdrawal
order?

2. If so, did the respondents knowi ngly authorize, order, or
carry out such violation within the neaning of section 110(c) of
the Act?

DI SCUSSI ON:

Respondent Ben Leil er nmade adm ssions which go to the
unsaf eness of the access to the head pulley and also go to his
know edge of unsafeness. He stated to the inspector that it was
very "taboo" to grease conveyors in the manner being used, but
that they did not have the manpower to install greasing
locations. (Tr. 39). At the tine of the inspection, he al so
stated to the inspector that a few nonths prior to the inspection
on May 1, 1979, an enployee had been injured at their other plant
when he fell approximately 15 feet into a sand pile froma
conveyor belt while greasing the head pulley. That conveyor was
equi pped with a wal kway and railing, but the conveyor observed by
the inspector on May 1, 1979, was not so equi pped.

There were two options nmentioned as access open to enpl oyees
who were maintaining and greasi ng the head pulley and any ot her
parts connected with the conveyor. One was the nethod observed
by the MBHA i nspector, with the enpl oyee wal ki ng up the conveyor,
and the other nethod was to clinb up the reject pile at the end
of the conveyor after the pile was of sufficient height.

Wtnesses for the respondents gave the opinion that it was
safe to clinb the reject pile in order to service the head
pul | ey. However, even if this were true, if there is no reject
pile at the tinme, the only nmeans of access would be for an
enpl oyee to wal k up the conveyor belt.
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M. Leiler agreed that it was hazardous to wal k up the
conveyor belt and that he had intended to correct the situation by
| owering the grease fittings to ground level. This was his
intention after the enployee fell fromthe conveyor belt severa
nmonths earlier, and was injured. The reason given for the
failure to install the lowered fittings was a |l ack of tinme, since
all available nen were on production. It is significant that
there are other reasons why an enpl oyee m ght have to clinb up
the reject pile other than to grease the head pulley. Rollers
have to be changed periodically on the conveyor and a notor or
the V-belt drives mght have to be changed.

Under the circunstances, there was no consistent and safe
means of access to the work area provided by the corporate
operator. According to the enpl oyee who was observed wal ki ng up
t he conveyor belt, this was a regular nmethod of access to the
area which was to be greased. Thus, the petitioner has shown by
a preponderance of the evidence that a safe nmeans of access to
t he worki ng area was not maintai ned and provi ded and that there
was a violation of 30 C F.R [56.11-1.

The next question was whether or not respondents know ngly
aut hori zed, ordered, and carried out such violation within the
meani ng of section 110(c) of the Act.

The Conmi ssion has found that Congress did not intend that
"knowi ngly" should be synonymous with "willfully". It has also
supported a judge's finding that "know ngly" as used here neans
"knowi ng or having reason to know'. Secretary of Labor, M ne
Safety and Health Adnministration v. Kenny R chardson, BARB
78-600-P, (Jan. 19, 1981).

Respondent Ben Leiler, by his own adm ssions, knew t hat
access to a working place by wal king up the conveyor belt was
unsafe or hazardous prior to the date of the inspection on May 1,
1979. He told the MSHA inspector that he had wanted to nove al
grease locations down to ground | evel since the earlier
experi ence of the enployee falling off of the conveyor belt.
However, no changes were made until after the w thdrawal order
was i ssued on May 1, 1979. By the follow ng day, the work of
| owering the grease fittings was acconplished. Thus, no action
was taken until an MSHA inspector happened al ong and observed the
viol ation taking place. | conclude fromhis own adm ssion that
respondent Ben Leiler knew or had reason to know of the
continuing violation on or before May 1, 1979, and, as
superintendent for the corporate operator, that he did nothing
about it. Accordingly, he violated section 110(c) of the Act as
al l eged by petitioner.

The evi dence does not show that respondent Frank L. MIles
knew or had reason to know that a safe neans of access was not
provi ded and mai ntai ned to the working place on or before May 1,
1979, that being the date that the w thdrawal order was issued
and the cited regul ation was violated. There
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was hearsay testinmony fromrespondent Leiler indicating that

M| es may have been aware of the fact that enpl oyees were wal ki ng
up the conveyor belt to grease the head pulley, but this evidence
i s neither conclusive nor substantial

CONCLUSI ONS:

1. The undersigned Administrative Law Judge has
jurisdiction over the parties and the subject matter

2. The Mles Sand & Gravel Conpany is a corporation and on
May 1, 1979, it violated 30 CF. R [56.11-1 as alleged in
Wt hdrawal Order No. 351863 in failing to provide and maintain a
saf e means of access to a working place.

3. Respondent Ben Lieler violated section 110(c) of the Act
as alleged in the conplaint of the petitioner

4. Petitioner has failed to prove that respondent Frank L.
Mles violated section 110(c) of the Act as all eged.

ORDER

The petition filed in DOCKET NO WEST 80-332-M Frank L.
Ml es, respondent is hereby dism ssed. |n DOCKET No. WEST
80-333-M Respondent Ben Leiler is found to have viol ated section
110(c) of the Act and is ordered to pay a penalty assessnent of
$250.00 within 30 days of the date of this decision.

Jon D. Boltz
Admi ni strative Law Judge
L TR T

~FOOTNOTE_ONE

VWhenever a corporate operator violates a nmandatory
health or safety standard ..., any director, officer, or agent of
such corporation who knowi ngly authorized, ordered, or carried
out such violation ... shall be subject to the sane civil
penalties, fines, ... that may be inposed upon a person under

subsections (a) and (d).



